MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025

The Arkansas State Police Commission met on Thursday, November 13, 2025, at the
Arkansas State Police Headquarters, Little Rock, Arkansas.

Commission Chairman Allison called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Commissioner John Allison, Chairman
Commissioner Jim Hinkle, Vice Chairman
Commissioner Ken Reeves, Secretary
Commissioner Neff Basore
Commissioner Steve Edwards
Commissioner Mike Akin
Commissioner Jeff Teague

STATE POLICE PERSONNEL PRESENT:

Colonel Mike Hagar Lt. Colonel Jason Aaron
Lt. Colonel Mike Kennedy Major Ron Casey

Major Mike Moyer Sherry Woods

Major Jeft Drew Kalika Rogers

Dan Mack Jenna Castleberry

Captain Dustin Morgan Captain Brad Lann
Captain Joe Carter Nick Genty

Captain Philip Hydron Lieutenant Brandon Margis
Karen Perry Lieutenant Marcus Daniels
Captain Rick Neill Lieutenant Alex Krneta
Sergeant Josh Porter Sergeant Cort Williams
Sergeant Justin Williams Sergeant Bo Hayes

Barry V. Roy Susan Tedford

Joan Shipley Sergeant Sor Lee

Captain Jeff Plouch Janie Runkle

Shelly Cantrell Sergeant Jacob Farnam
Jonathan Nettles Captain Craig Teague
Caitlin Teague James Sutton

Donna Humphries

OTHERS PRESENT:
Will Puddephatt, AG Office Emily Hamilton, ASP Foundation
Sydney Duncan, ASP Foundation Cynthia Roy
Katelyn Roy Jeanette Roy
William Roy Kayla Roy
Laura Williams Kelsey Porter
Erin Williams Jennifer Hayes
Austin Coleman, Senator Cotton’s Office = Kendra Merritt
Rachel Wilson, AWIN David Baker, AWIN

Donald Rhoads, ASP Foundation
Elizabeth Burns Anderson, ASP Foundation

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Commission Chairman Allison led the pledge of allegiance.

NOTIFICATION OF MEDIA:

The media was notified of this meeting on November 3, 2025.

MINUTES:

Commission Chairman Allison stated you have the minutes of the prior meeting.
Commissioner Reeves made a motion to approve the minutes of October 9, 2025, regular

monthly commission meeting. Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion and second, any opposed, the motion carried.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 2

Commission Chairman Allison stated we have a couple of Weapon Resolutions today, Major
Ron Casey.

WEAPON RESOLUTIONS:

Major Ron Casey presented the following resolutions for consideration by the ASP
Commission.

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of twenty-seven years, six months,
and twenty-nine days;

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers retired from this department September
30, 2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission,;

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers has made formal request that his service

weapon be retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
November 13, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 awards him, his Glock Model 17,
Serial Number BMSA333, as a token of their esteem and appreciation for service devoted to
the Arkansas State Police.

Commissioner Edwards made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to
the Commission. Commissioner Akin seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison
stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of twenty-seven years, six months,
and twenty-nine days;

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers retired from this department September
30, 2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission,;

WHEREAS: Sr. Corporal David Smothers has made formal request that his shotgun

be retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
November 13, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 determines the fair market value of
the Remington shotgun, serial number W427920M, that Sr. Corporal David Smothers has
carried be affixed at $100.00, and that Sr. Corporal David Smothers be permitted to purchase
the shotgun for his personal use.

Commissioner Edwards made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to

the Commission. Commissioner Akin seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison
stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 3

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of seven years, seven months, and
five days;

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis retired from this department September 30,
2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission;

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis has made formal request that his service
weapon be retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
November 13, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 awards him, his Glock Model 17,
Serial Number BRUK987, as a token of their esteem and appreciation for service devoted to
the Arkansas State Police.

Commissioner Teague made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to
the Commission. Commissioner Reeves seconded the motion. Commission Chairman
Allison stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of seven years, seven months, and
five days;

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis retired from this department September 30,
2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission;

WHEREAS: Corporal Tyler Pendarvis has made formal request that his shotgun be
retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
November 13, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 determines the fair market value of
the Remington shotgun, serial number RS45318K, that Corporal Tyler Pendarvis has carried
be affixed at $100.00, and that Corporal Tyler Pendarvis be permitted to purchase the shotgun
for his personal use.

Commissioner Teague made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to
the Commission. Commissioner Reeves seconded the motion. Commission Chairman
Allison stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.
Commission Chairman Allison stated promotion certificates, Colonel Hagar.

PROMOTION CERTIFICATES:

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Justin T. Williams
promoting him to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop D.

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Jacob Farnam promoting
him to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop A.

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Josh Porter promoting him
to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop H.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 4

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Cort Williams promoting
him to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop H.

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Bo Hayes promoting him
to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop K.

Colonel Mike Hagar presented a promotion certificate to Sergeant Sor Lee promoting him to
Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop L.

Commission Chairman Allison stated congratulations to all of the recipients, it is good to see
recognition for these outstanding individuals, the jobs they perform and with their families,
it makes me smile too Colonel.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next, we have the “Sonny” Cox Award of Excellence
in Public Safety Communications, today, and with us is Rachel Wilson and David Baker, if
ya’ll would come up, please and make your presentation, we would certainly appreciate it.

Good morning, my name is Rachel Wilson, I work as the AWIN User Experience Lead in
AWIN which is part of the Arkansas Division of Emergency Management. We manage the
statewide public safety radio system, you all here have AWIN radios on your hips, you know
what 1 am talking about. Ms. Wilson stated and this is David Baker, Project Manager in
AWIN. Ms. Wilson stated first of all I want to thank the Commission for giving us a few
moments of your time and letting us come down here and do this. Ms. Wilson stated we are
here to present an award to one of your very own. I thought I would really quick tell you a
little bit about what the award is for and who its namesake is and then David will talk to you
about this year’s winner. Ms. Wilson stated Glenn “Sonny” Cox was a successful
businessman who eventually became a County Judge for Arkansas County, he served 12
terms and while he was Arkansas County JudgOe and serving on the Arkansas County Judges
Association, he became Chairman of our executive committee, our steering committee in
AWIN, the Arkansas Interoperable Communications Committee. Ms. Wilson stated he has
always been generous, kind, fair minded, he knows a lot about communications, he knows a
lot about public safety, and he has guided our committee with two important mottos of his,
which one is treat everybody the same, he is very fair minded and that helps us keep people
to policy and two is always do the right thing, which helps guide the committee when
something approaches us that is in the grey area. Ms. Wilson stated when Sonny Cox was
retiring from his twelfth term as County Judge, we decided to honor him with this annual
award in his name. He is still our chairman, he is about 80 now, but he is still alive and active
with us, it sounds like posthumous award, but it is not. Judge Cox has got to see this awarded,
I think this is our 11" year. Ms. Wilson stated what the award represents, because our
specialty is communications, public safety communications we want to recognize at least one
public safety personnel member each year whose job at least partially touches on
communications or interoperable planning with the surrounding community, and they pursue
their job with excellence that is beyond just being good at their job. We assume that every
nomination we receive is for somebody who shows up and does their job very well. What
we are looking for on the executive committee is someone who goes above and beyond the
normal parameters of their job, really extends themselves to the public safety community, to
their co-workers, to seek interoperability with surrounding agencies, to teach, to train, to pass
along their wisdom and it just gives it that extra something special that makes them highly
recognized. This year we have a great candidate; we were flooded with nominations and
letters on his behalf and now I am going to turn this over to David Baker and he is going to
tell you a little bit about this year’s winner.

David Baker stated like Rachel said this award is given and selected by the Executive
Committee, but one of the things is the nominations come from these peoples peers. Mr.
Baker stated so [ want to share some of the comments that the peers of this person wrote. Mr.
Baker stated this year’s winner for the Cox Award is Barry Vaughn Roy. He is the
Telecommunications Supervisor for Troop D of the Arkansas State Police and has been in
this position, or he has worked for them for twenty-one years, the last six as the Dispatch
Supervisor and he also serves on the Brinkley Volunteer Fire Department since 2018. Mr.
Baker stated he is known as a strong leader, a great mentor, generous, supportive of co-
workers as evident by all the nominations and letters of support for the Cox Award that we
received. Mr. Baker stated he received three different nominations, two letters of support,
and he obviously has a fan club over in Eastern Arkansas for sure. So, some of the quotes



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 5

that we received that helped the committee select this person, it says “he generally cares about
taking care of the safety of not only our troopers but the public as well, in many situations he
has gone above and beyond for people by contacting everyone available, getting them the
information or help that is needed.” We also heard, “Vaughn Roy is always willing to share
his knowledge, and to share his experiences through the years so we can learn from them, he
teaches in a way so that you remember and don’t have to ask twice. He knows everyone
learns differently and he adapts to the individual to help them be the best they can be.” “His
door is always open.” “He was working with a new dispatcher when a trooper advised over
the radio that he was shot in the chest while pursuing an armed suspect, he confirmed the
radio traffic as correct and guided the new dispatcher through the situation. That trooper did
survive and was later awarded Trooper of the Year.” Another comment was “Mr. Vaughn’s
professionalism during a crisis even when a personal friend of his was shot during an incident,
showing compassion to fellow dispatchers when they are suffering personally including
covering there shift and making sure, they have enough money to get through.” Mr. Baker
stated those are just a few of the comments we received for this year’s recipient, so I would
like to present this award this year to Barry Vaughn Roy.

Commission Chairman Allison stated division reports, Karen Perry, Fiscal Section.

Karen Perry stated good morning, Colonel and Commissioners, you have the October report
in front of you, we should be at 33%, and our revenue and expenses are coming in at just
about that. Ms. Perry stated we have $83,000.00 in loans that we are waiting on the Federal
Government, now that they are being opened back up hopefully, we will get that money back
and that is really all I have to report unless you have questions.

Commission Chairman Allison asked if we have experienced this in the past, and how long
will it take? Ms. Perry stated we should probably get it in the next 30 days, it should not be
that big of a deal, we have already submitted the request, so we are just waiting on them to
get back to work to process it. Commission Chairman Allison asked so are salaries, overtime
and all on back pay? Ms. Perry stated that has nothing to do with these loans, these loans are
grants that we have from ADEM that is mostly for training, so it has nothing to do with our
salaries, Ms. Perry stated it is just reimbursements for some training. Commission Chairman
Allison stated Arkansas pays our troopers and Ms. Perry stated yes, general revenue pays for
that.

Commissioner Teague stated just one question, for October I noticed that regular salaries and
extra help as well as overtime, all three of those were considerable over budget, was there
anything that drove that? Ms. Perry stated we had three pay periods in October, so it should
level out next month. Commissioner Teague stated that’s why? Ms. Perry stated we usually
have two pay periods, and it usually stays within those percentages but when you have three
it pushes it over just a little bit. Commissioner Teague stated okay. Commission Chairman
Allison stated that is a good catch, I saw it myself, thank you.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Administrative Services.

Captain Craig Teague stated Colonel, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners good morning for
October, Admin Services had the following, the commissioned transactions we had two
disciplinary suspensions, three promotions, two retirements, four voluntary resignations, and
one lateral transfer. We had three military deployments.

Captain Craig Teague stated on the 2025A Troop School, we are finishing up week seven
they were fighting, shooting, and driving this week. Captain Teague stated it is hard to
believe we only have five weeks remaining and graduation is set for December 18 at the
Benton Event Center at 6:00 p.m. and we will get your invitation to you next month.

Captain Teague stated I do want to take the time to thank all of the Division Commanders,
the Troop Commanders, and Company Commanders, they have been more than lenient to
send troopers to be DI’s and Instructors for this Troop School and I know that it affects their
schedules and the personnel power they have there, so I really do appreciate you guys a lot.

Captain Craig Teague stated the POLAR Team assisted 41 individuals and had 11 follow-up
visits. Captain Craig Teague stated they did conduct their first 40-hour Power in Peer class



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 6

at Central ALETA. They had 18 first responders come in from different parts of the state,
and they graduated.

Captain Craig Teague stated for the ASP Health Plan we received over $24,239.00 in
subsidies from Part B in October. In October we had five weeks of claims, those invoices
being medical and pharmacy claims came up to $521,000 higher than last month. Captain
Craig stated we did have contractual savings for September in medical claims that totaled
$1,758,162 and the total fund balance is $11.9 million right now.

Commissioner Basore asked when was graduation again, December? Captain Teague stated
it is December 18, Thursday, at the Benton Event Center.

Commissioner Teague asked on the two disciplinary suspensions; can you give any cover on
what those involved? Captain Teague stated no sir, I would probably believe that would not
be in my lane to do so, but I bet you can talk to the Colonel.

Commissioner Allison asked what the actual claims were for the month, the total. Captain
Teague stated the actual total was $2.1 million, the average for 2025 we have looked for year
to date is $1.5 million, but with two variables at play, one being five weeks of claims and
being a five-week month and roll over from September, $480,000 rolled over from September
in the first week of October. Captain Teague stated then we had I believe it is called a CMS
claim we have been dealing with on a different issue that added another $135,000 to that, but
without those two variables we are at $1.5 million and then those two variables got thrown
in.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Major Jeff Drew, Crimes Against Children.

Major Jeff Drew stated good morning, Colonel, Chair, Commissioners, the CACD Hotline
received 6,761 calls for the month of October, with 3,120 of those being accepted for
investigation, and additional 855 were for differential responses. Major Drew stated there
were 15 child deaths that were reported, one was investigated, and 14 were assessed. Major
Drew stated investigations opened 620 new cases, closed 514 cases, with 137 of those being
true, so that gave us a substantiation rate of 27%.

Commissioner Reeves asked what happens on those 137, are charges filed, are arrests made.
Major Drew stated it all depends on the Prosecutor. What takes place is they are placed on
the Child Maltreatment Registry, and those investigators work hand in hand with law
enforcement, and they will put everything together and present it to the Prosecutor and the
Prosecutor will decide what charges come from it. Commissioner Reeves stated someone on
your staff gathers up all of the facts and then sits down with the Prosecuting Attorney. Major
Drew stated yes sir and with law enforcement, they work hand in hand. Major Drew stated
not all of our investigations that are found true will necessarily end up with any type of arrest
or prosecution.

Commissioner Reeves stated this Hotline, you know it has all been in the news here lately
and this Hotline that people call in to, I know we end up with some of these cases and DHS
ends up with some of the cases, so I have never understood who has the Hotline? Major
Drew stated the Hotline belongs to CACD. What takes place is the call will come into the
Hotline; there is an MOU between the both of us and within that we establish who handles
which allegation. If it comes under a particular allegation, then it belongs to CACD, then we
will conduct the investigation.

Commissioner Reeves stated so we decide which ones to go to DHS? Major Drew stated
from the agreement, yes sir.

Commissioner Basore stated I noticed in your report there is a category called no address,
unable to contact or follow up. Do we do anything extra with that or is it just when it comes
in and there is no way to find them. Major Drew stated on the unable to locate, we will make
contact with the caller and see if they can provide additional information, sometimes we will
have a previous report that may have an address on it to help us locate them.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 7

Commissioner Basore stated when a first responder, a doctor, a nurse, or a teacher, is that one
of the calls that you count, mandatory, is that a call to the call center. Major Drew stated the
mandated reporters, yes sir.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Criminal Investigations, Captain Joe Carter.

Captain Joe Carter stated good morning, Colonel, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, in the
month of October we had 14 death investigations, four of those were homicides, one natural
death, one accidental death, a negligent homicide that we helped Highway Patrol on and
seven undetermined deaths that we are still waiting on lab results to come back to determine
manner of death. We worked two aggravated assaults, one of those was an officer involved
shooting, we had 13 child pornography cases that we worked, and we had four ADC referral
cases. We also assisted other agencies with 54 investigations ranging from drug
investigations to death investigations.

Captain Carter stated as I look through October, I saw that our Internet Crimes Against
Children Division did an operation called Operation Rotten Patch, they served six search
warrants on different locations, at five of those locations they got a total of 121 images of
child pornography, and they also filed two counts of computer exploitation of a child. At that
sixth location they worked hand in hand with the Fort Smith Police Department, they seized
six devices, they are not finished going through those devices yet, but they have already found
18,500 images of child porn.

Commission Chairman Allison stated good work, get those people off the streets.
Commission Chairman Allison stated Highway Patrol, Major Ron Casey.

Major Ron Casey stated numbers for Highway Patrol for October, troopers made 2,312
criminal arrests, with 1,437 persons being arrested. Major Casey stated 274 DWIs were taken
off the streets and 10 DUISs, troopers issued 7,382 hazardous arrest citations and arrested 474
people for those violations. Troopers issued 16,501 citations for October, they also assisted
2,707 motorists, pursuits were down a little bit this month, we had 45. They investigated
1,588 crashes with 40 of those being fatalities. Troopers recovered 23 stolen vehicles with a
net worth of approximately $407,355.00 and recovered $1,965.00 worth of stolen property.
Troopers drove 874,010 miles in the month of October. Major Casey stated we had seven
SWAT missions and had a 70-hour counter terrorism course. Major Casey stated we had 14
aircraft missions, DL/CDL tests were given to 21,851 persons, and dispatch received 28,012
calls for service. The Interstate Criminal Patrol really had a slow month, they seized
$12,638.00 in cash, they confiscated 4.19 pounds of marijuana, 1.85 pounds of
methamphetamine, and 213 pills including ecstasy, oxycodone, amphetamines, Zanax and
.23 pounds of other drugs including THC gummies, promethazine, fentanyl and THC vapes
were confiscated.

Major Casey stated if everything goes the way you all plan this morning, you will promote
my replacement, so this will be my last time to give a report for Highway Patrol. Major
Casey stated I will be around a couple more months just will not be up here.

Commission Chairman Allison stated you will be missed. Major Casey stated thanks, I
appreciate it.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next is Regulatory and Building Operations, Major
Mike Moyer.

Major Mike Moyer stated Mr. Chairman, Commissioners and Colonel Hagar good morning,
during the month of October, the Identification Bureau and AFIS Section processed 24,860
civil background checks and 8,616 criminal background checks. The Used Motor Vehicle
Dealer Section processed 196 dealer applications. The PI Security Section processed 547
applications. The Bomb Squad handled eight explosive calls.

Major Moyer stated a quick update on the barracks; the single-story barracks they are actually
installing the floors at this time, it looks fantastic. On the two-story barracks, they are
finishing up drywall and will be starting to paint soon. In the Lodge they have all the staining
done on the beams, so it is coming along very good. They are still planning to be completely



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 8

with the facility in May or June of 2026.

Commission Chairman Allison stated [ am going to move the agenda around a little, we have
Emily Hamilton here today and if that is alright Colonel, we are going to go ahead and hear
from her, welcome.

Emily Hamilton with the ASP Foundation stated thank you, Colonel, Chairman,
Commissioners I would like to introduce Sydney Duncan, our new Operations and Events
Coordinator at the foundation. She came on board this year, and I have not had a chance to
introduce her to you all, so I wanted to do that. Ms. Hamilton stated also I have ASP
Foundation Board President, Elizabeth Anderson with me today and another board member
Donald J. Rhoads. Ms. Hamilton stated we have had a phenomenal year this year at the ASP
Foundation, I wanted to just go over a few quick stats with you and then I am going to play
a video for our new Capital Campaign. Ms. Hamilton stated our scholarship program is going
phenomenally well, we gave out $145,000 in awards for 2025, this put us over the half
million-dollar mark for scholarships awarded to date. Ms. Hamilton stated just to recap our
scholarship, it pays $4,000 a semester for troopers dependents, it pays the same amount for
bachelor’s degrees, associates degrees, or any kind of certificate program such as HVAC,
Welding, Electrician, so, we are very proud of our scholarship fund. Ms. Hamilton stated all
of our fundraising this year to date has gone toward our scholarship program, we have held
13 events this year and nine of those events were fundraisers, so it was a very, very busy year.
Ms. Hamilton stated we appreciate all of your support as well. Also, our Hearts for Heroes
program which support troopers and their families during illness, injury, natural disaster, we
have had a house fire this year, and we had a home affected by a tornado. Ms. Hamilton
stated we have done over $15,000 in support in our Hearts for Heroes program. Our
auxiliaries have been very active, if any of you are on social media and see our auxiliaries,
they are coming up with merchandise all the time. Troop D has a K9 plushie, there has been
challenge coins, it has just been phenomenal, how our auxiliaries have stepped up, and this
merchandise not only brings money into these auxiliaries, but it also promotes our mission
and gets the people talking about us and our foundation and what we do for the Arkansas
State Police. So, without further ado, I am going to play the video and then I will do a follow-
up after. Ms. Hamilton stated that is our Capital Campaign, we just launched it on October
23 at the Governor’s Mansion. We are off to a roaring start; I would like to announce that
Chairman Allison made a $1.5 million pledge to us, and we were astounded and so surprised
and happy to have that, so Chairman thank you. Ms. Hamilton stated just because Chairman
Allison did that large donation, we still want to get all of our rooms sponsored, so we have
63 rooms, and we are up to about 20 sponsored so far. Ms. Hamilton stated we do still have
room sponsorships; the brick pavers, I tell people all the time if you want to do a donation
where your name will be etched in stone in life forever, this is the donation to do. Ms.
Hamilton stated our hope is that all troopers and their families will get a brick out there on
the sidewalk. We tried to make an affordable option for everybody. Ms. Hamilton stated we
did just in September pay our $7.6 million for the ASP Foundations, part of the construction,
so the foundation’s part of the construction is completed, and we are now focusing on
furniture, fixtures and equipment, I wrote checks all week long to cover that. So, would
anyone like to ask any questions? Commission Chairman Allison asked what is the
completion date? Ms. Hamilton stated they are saying May to June, I have the whole month
of June and July marked off on my calendar. Speaking of calendars, I gave you a 2026 event
schedule, I put it at every one of your seats, we have eight events right now scheduled from
January to June. So, it is going to be another busy, fast and furious year for the foundation
and we are planning in June to host a big ribbon cutting out there, so we are very excited.
Commission Chairman Allison asked will we have an event there? Ms. Hamilton stated yes,
we will have a big event.

Commission Chairman Allison stated you are doing a great job, thank you.
Commissioner Hinkle stated as soon as that is completed, we should hold a commission
meeting out there. Commission Chairman Allison stated yes, we should do that, Colonel let’s

hold a commission meeting out there.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Colonel do we have business to discuss? Colonel
Hagar stated I would request that we go into executive session to discuss personnel matters.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
November 13, 2025 — Page 9

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Commissioner Reeves stated Mr. Chairman I would move that the Commission enter into
Executive Session for the purpose of considering promotions of employees. Commissioner
Hinkle seconded, and the motion passed. Commission Chairman Allison asked anyone
opposed and stated we will return. The Commission went into the Executive Session at 10:47
a.m.

At 11:43 a.m., Commission Chairman Allison stated I will call the meeting back to order
please. Colonel, do you have some recommendations?

Colonel Hagar stated yes sir, for Sergeant Troop F Highway Patrol, the recommendation is
Corporal Dustin Arnold. Commissioner Teague made a motion that Corporal Dustin Arnold
be promoted to Sergeant in the Highway Patrol Division, Troop F. Commissioner Reeves
seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have a motion, and a second,
any discussion, all in favor say aye, the motion carries.

Colonel Hagar stated for Captain in the Director’s Office, Executive Protection Detail, the
recommendation is Lieutenant Brian Coty Williams. Commissioner Hinkle made a motion
that Lieutenant Brian Coty Williams be promoted to Captain in the Director’s Office,
Executive Protection. Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission Chairman
Allison stated we have a motion, and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye, the motion
carries.

Colonel Hagar stated for Major in Highway Patrol Administration, the recommendation is
Captain Philip Hydron. Commissioner Edwards made a motion that Captain Philip Hydron
be promoted to Major in the Highway Patrol Division, Administration. Commissioner Hinkle
seconded the motion. Commission Chairman Allison stated we have a motion and a second,
any discussion, all in favor say aye, all those opposed, so ordered.

NEXT MEETING:

Commission Chairman Allison stated we will have our next regular scheduled meeting,
December 11, 2025, at 10:00 a.m., Donna is that what you have us set up for? Donna
Humphries stated yes sir.

Colonel Hagar stated that is all I have Mr. Chairman. Commission Chairman Allison asked
does anybody have anything else today? Commission Chairman Allison stated with no
further business, I will adjourn the meeting at 11:45 a.m.

Commission Chairman

Commission Secretary



